Software Engineering Support (SES) 

Final RFP NNG09276134R

Questions:


8/10/2009:

Question 1: With respect to the subject solicitation, the Q&A made reference to the publication of a reference library of support documents, procedures, GPRs, NPRs and a description of task orders issued under the current METS procurement (see excerpt below).

Has such a library been published? If not, when is it expected to be available?

Response: There is no separate Library, the RFP has a PDF file labeled Sample Technical Reports, and this is in lieu of a library. 

Also located in L.2 are the following sites you may review:

sed.gsfc.nasa.gov (Software Engineering Division)

gmsec.gsfc.nasa.gov (Goddard Mission Services Evolution Center)

nodis.hq.nasa.gov (NASA Online Directives and Information System)

8/12/2009
Question 1: RFP Section L.17.3 Subfactor C – Management Plan includes the following paragraphs (on p. 95): --begin quote “The Offeror shall provide a detailed phase-in plan that addresses, at a minimum, the Offeror’s approach to phase-in sufficient to ensure continuity and a smooth transition with the incumbent Contractor during the 45-day phase-in period. The phase-in plan shall clearly demonstrate an ability to assume full contract responsibility on the effective date of the contract. The phase-in plan shall also specifically address how ongoing work will be maintained, the proposed management organization, schedule, staffing plan, orientation and training of personnel. The Offeror shall address its preparation for the timely processing of the Personal Identify Verification (PIV) requirements.  If the phase-in plan assumes any dependency upon the incumbent contractor, please identify.  Also, specify the extent of involvement of NASA personnel during this period.

The 45-day phase-in period will be accomplished through the issuance of a separate fixed price contracting instrument.

The Offeror shall provide a complete staffing plan that shows how it will fill the staff requirements identified in the organization chart.  The staffing plan shall include a comprehensive hiring plan which presents the expected number of personnel to be hired from incumbents, those to be transferred from within the Offeror’s own organization, and those from other sources.  Describe what effort will be undertaken to recruit staff not currently in the company employ. A staffing plan must be submitted for the phase-in plan and for the contract.”
--end quote
 
A) It is clear that the first two paragraphs refer to the Phase-In Plan which is not page limited. But we are not sure if the third paragraph still refers to the Phase-In Plan or whether those requirements need to be addressed in the Management Plan and thus subject to the 120-page limitation. Please clarify where in the proposal should Offeror’s address the items listed in the third paragraph. 

Response: Subfactor C-Management Plan requires each Offeror to submit a staffing plan for both the Phase in and the Management plan for the contract. Each Offeror is required to address all items in both plans. The Phase in plan is excluded from the page limitation. 

B) Please also clarify what is meant by the sentence “A staffing plan must be submitted for the phase-in plan and for the contract.” Namely, should we include a single staffing plan discussion covering both the phase-in period and the full duration of the SES contract, or should we include a staffing plan in the Phase-In Plan, and a separate staffing plan in the Management Plan? 

Response: Yes, Subfactor C-Management Plan requires each Offeror to submit a staffing plan for both the Phase in plan and the Management plan for the contract.

Question 2: RFP Section L.17.3 Subfactor B – Representative Task Order (RTO) includes a requirement for the RTO response to include: “…technical approach, labor categories, projected hours, ...” while RFP Section L.18.2.(i) BASIS of ESTIMATES (BOE) requires that the BOE include: “…Narrative explaining how you arrived at your estimate of labor hours…” Response: 

 Is the Government’s intent that detailed information on labor categories and hours to accomplish the RTO be included in both the RTO response in the Mission Suitability Volume and in the BOE response in the Cost Volume, or should the information be presented in one section and referenced from the other location? Please clarify. 

Response: Yes, the information should be included in both RTO responses in the Mission Suitability Volume and in the BOE response in the Cost Volume. 

Question 3: Phase-in Period: Cover letter and L.18.2 (m)

a) For pricing purposes, can we assume the phase-in period to start on February 16, 2010 and the contract start date of April 1, 2010. 

Response: Yes you can assume that however, make sure you document what dates you are using.

b) Section D is missing from the Table of Content. 

Response: There is no section D

Question 4: Section L.15 (b) (2). References Diagrams, charts, tables, artwork and photographs may be reduced and, if necessary, run landscape or folder to eliminate oversize pages. Please clarify “reduced” to what font size?

Response: They may be reduced to the font and size necessary to ensure you don’t have oversized pages. 


Question 5: Section L.17.3, Subfactor C makes reference to Exhibits 5a and 5b (page 96), should this be Exhibits 12a and 12b? 

Response: Correct these exhibits should read 12a and 12b, an amendment will be posted.

Question 6: Section E.2 52.246-11 (c) states as follows: Per NPR 7150.2, the Contractor shall put forth a plan for their approach to achieving CMMI Maturity or Capability Level 2 Rating or higher for software or have a non-expired Capability Maturity Model IntegrationR for Development (CMMI-DEV) rating as measured by a Software Engineering Institute (SEI) authorized or certified lead appraiser

Response: Yes, the Contractor/Offeror must maintain CMMI Level 2.

As GSFC is itself certified at CMMI Level 2 and uses its own Process Asset Library (PAL), we assume that any software developed by the Contractor must follow the GSFC-defined process. Is it also necessary that the Contractor separately achieve/maintain CMMI Level 2 or higher for itself? For example, we assume that a Contractor maintained PAL would be superseded by GSFC's PAL. We also assume that any new staff assigned to this contract will have to be trained in GSFC specific procedures as it relates to NPR 7150.2 or CMMI-2.

Please clarify if what is intended is that any Contractor developed software must comply with the applicable GSFC process.

Response: Yes, the Contractor/Offeror must comply with the applicable GSFC process.

8/13/09
Question 1: Is there a precedent contract? And if so, who is the current prime contractor for the contract?

Response: There are several contracts that the SES contract will be comprised of, portions of the following; Mission Operations Mission Support (Prime: Honeywell), Multidisciplinary Engineering and Technology Services (Prime: SGT), Sciences and Exploration Data Analysis II (Prime: ADNET), CSC Flight Software (Prime: CSC), CSC Omni (Prime: CSC), CSC SIIS (Prime: CSC), and Constellation Software Engineering (Prime: CSC) contracts.

8/15/09

Question 1: Amendment 2 deletes section L.18.2 (a), Summary of Estimated Cost and Maximum Award Fee. 

a)
Is it Government's intent to delete Exhibits 1A and 1B, if so, are we to assume that all references to Exhibits 1A and 1B in sections L.18.2 (c), L.18.2 (d), L.18.2 (e) are not applicable?

b)
In addition, Exhibits 2A, 2B, 2C, 2D, 2E, and 2F also make references to Exhibits 1A and 1B, should these references be deleted?

c)
If Exhibits 1A and 1B are deleted then we believe Exhibits 1C and 1D do not apply.

d)
Will the Government also remove the reference to Exhibits 1A and 1B from section M.5 

With the deletions of Exhibits 1A and 1B, we believe there is a significant change in the cost evaluation criteria. Section M.5 indicates that the Government Pricing Model, i.e., Exhibits 1A and 1B will be presented to the Source Selection Authority (SSA) and that the RTO CPAF amount will not be shown to the SSA.  This will require the SSA to make a selection based on the phase-in price, the RTO probable cost adjustment percentage amounts and any Mission Suitability strengths and weaknesses assessed in response to the RTO exhibits. Please clarify. 

In light of this and other significant changes from the DRFP and the short period for which information in the final RFP have been back on line, we respectfully request GSFC to consider a 45-days response to the RFP, instead of the current 30-days. We believe that such an expanded response time of 45-days is in the Government's best interest to ensure receipt of multiple viable proposals.

Response: Amendment 2 deleted section L.18.2 (a), Summary of Estimated Cost and Maximum Award Fee. Exhibits 1A and 1B no longer represent a Summary of Estimated Cost and Maximum Award Fee. Exhibit 1A  is the GOVERNMENT PRICING MODEL - BID RATES  and 1B is the  GOVERNMENT PRICING MODEL - CEILING RATES  and  they remain a valid part of this RFP and all Offeror’s should respond accordingly to all references of these exhibits.
Question 2: Section B.7 (b) - Limitation of Indirect Costs. Subparagraph (iii) was removed with the Final RFP; however, a deviation from clause GSFC 52.231-90 (JUL 2006) is not indicated.  Please confirm if it is the Government's intent to delete subparagraph (iii). 

Response: The government did intend to delete subparagraph (iii). This subparagraph speaks to level of effort and this is an IDIQ contract. 
Question 3: Section L.15 (b) - Proposal Content and Page Limitation.  The table includes incorrect references to each proposal volume's respective RFP Section.  

Response: Each reference is updated as follows; Offer Volume L.16, Mission Suitability L.17, Cost Volume L.18 and Past Performance L.19.  An amendment will be issued.
Question 4: Section L.18(1) - Instructions are for all significant subcontractors to provide the same cost exhibits that is requested from the Prime Offeror, except Exhibit 1; however, Exhibits 4 and 4a do not include a row for subcontractor cost.  Please clarify if Exhibits 4 and 4a are to be revised as required for Prime and, if proposed, significant subcontractors to submit Exhibits 4 and 4a. 

Response:  Exhibit 4 request that you list each significant subcontractor separately by name- Labor and Total Costs as Other Direct Cost. Exhibit 4A additional fields have been added to provide Subcontractor Cost. An amendment will be issued.
Question 5: Section L.18 (2) (g) - Summary of Estimated Cost and Maximum Award Fee. Section includes reference to Exhibit 3 as summarizing elements of cost and maximum available award fee for RTO; however, the applicable workbook indicates Exhibit 3 is reserved.  Please clarify. 

Response:   The Summary of Estimated Cost and Maximum Award Fee will be deleted. An amendment will be issued.
Question 6: Section L.18 (2) (i) - Please note this section includes a duplicate subparagraph (i). 
Response: An amendment will be issued to renumber L.18 (2) subsection (i) correcting the duplicate (i) BASIS OF ESTIMATES (BOE) and (k) CONTRACTOR FISCAL YEAR TO CONTRACT YEAR RATE  CONVERSATION EXHIBITS.
Question 7: Exhibits 7, 8, and Attachment B include a requirement to provide rates for six contract years.  However, Exhibit 1 provides hours by labor category for five contract years.  Please clarify if Offeror's are to include labor, indirect, and award fee rates for five or six contract years to complete referenced Exhibits and Attachment B as required. 

Response:  Exhibits 7, 8, and Attachment B should include rates for six contract years in accordance with Clause 52.216-22, B.11. However,  Exhibit 1 only provides hours by labor category for five contract years.
Question 8: Section L.18 (2) (j) - Contractor Fiscal Year to Contract Year Rate Conversion Exhibits reads "Exhibit 7A bid rates should match Section 2 of Attachment B".  Section 2 of Attachment B includes the following limitation "The Contractor shall not exceed the rates as specified below for pricing all task orders contemplated or issued in accordance with Clause H.9, Task Ordering Procedures".  Given this limitation, should the rates match the ceiling rates included with Exhibit 7B in lieu of the bid rates included with Exhibit 7A?

Response:  No, the RFP is correct. Task ordering pricing is done using bid rates. Task orders will not be priced using ceiling rates.
Question 9: Section L.18.2 (g) discusses Exhibit 3 (summary of the elements of cost and maximum available award fee for the RTO) but in the solicitation template Exhibit 3 is blank and says reserved. Please clarify

Response: The Summary of Estimated Cost and Maximum Award Fee discussed in L.18.2 (g) will be deleted. An amendment will be issued.
Question 10: L.18.2 (g) this section refers to Exhibit 3 - Summary of Estimated Cost and Maximum Available Award Fee, but in the spreadsheets, Exhibit 3 is reserved. Should an Exhibit 3 be included with the RFP?

Response:  The Summary of Estimated Cost and Maximum Award Fee discussed in L.18.2 (g) will be deleted. An amendment will be issued.
Question 11: L.18.2 (b) and Attachment B Section 5 Attachment B includes a Section 5 for Position Descriptions, however Section L18.2 (b) provides instructions for Attachment b, Sections 1 through 4 and not Section 5.  Is Section 5 required? If so, please provide instructions.
Response: Please review Attachment B Section 5, each Offeror is to propose and provide position descriptions For All Offeror Direct Labor Categories including significant subcontractors.  
Question 12: Cover Letter, the RFP number included in the Cover Letter is different from that noted within the body of the RFP. Which one should we use in responding to the RFP?
Response: the RFP cover letter should read NNG09276134R. An amendment will be issued.
Question 13: I.3 52.219-18 Notification of Competition Limited to Eligible 8(A) Concerns, The Government has included the referenced FAR clause that states that an 8(a) concern must be eligible at the time of the submission of the offer in order to be awarded a contract under this solicitation.  The Code of Federal Regulations, Title 13 CFR 124.507(d) indicates that an 8(A) concern remains eligible for award if “it was a Participant eligible for award of the contract on the initial date specified for receipt of offers contained in the contract solicitation, and if it continues to meet all other applicable eligibility criteria”.  Please confirm that the initial due date of September 8th 2009 will be used to determine 8(a) eligibility even if NASA extends the due date for submission beyond the term of a participant.  

Title 13 CFR 124.507(d) states:

TITLE 13--BUSINESS CREDIT AND ASSISTANCE CHAPTER I--SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION PART 124_8(a) BUSINESS  DEVELOPMENT/ SMALL DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS STATUS DETERMINATIONS--Table of Contents Subpart A_8(a) Business Development Sec. 124.507 (d) Award to firms whose program terms have expired. A concern that has completed its term of participation in the 8(a) BD program may be awarded a competitive 8(a) contract if it was a Participant eligible for award of the contract on the initial date specified for receipt of offers contained in the contract solicitation, and if it continues to meet all other applicable eligibility criteria. (1) Amendments to the solicitation extending the date for submissions of offers will be disregarded. (2) For a negotiated procurement, a Participant may submit revised offers, including a best and final offer, and be awarded a competitive 8(a) contract if it was eligible as of the initial date specified for the receipt of offers in the solicitation, even though its program term may expire after that date.

Response: The Government intends to use the initial proposal due date as the 8a eligiblity date, even if the proposal due date is extended.

Question 14: L.3(c); L.14(a)1; and L.15(a)2, Paragraph L.3(c) indicates that offerors are required to submit a copy of our cost proposal to our Administrative Contracting Officer, the Contract Auditor, and the cognizant DCAA office at the time of our proposal submission to GSFC. L.14 (a) 1 indicates in the table that the number of copies of the Cost Volume is “Original plus 8 Hard Copies, one additional copy for DCAA and two electronic copies.” However, L.15(a)2 indicates that we are to “forward one (1) copy of their Cost Proposal, marked “Enter RFP NNG09276134R/NASA Proposal Evaluation Material”, to their cognizant Defense Contract Audit Agency (DCAA) office.” It further requires that “A copy of the proposal transmittal letter to DCAA shall be forwarded to the Contracting Officer for each cost proposal (prime and significant subcontractors) responding to this RFP.
Response: All sections will be updated and an amendment issued to reflect an update.  A copy of the cost proposal shall be forwarded to (1) the Administrative Contracting Officer (ACO), and (2) the Contract Auditor (DCMA) and (3) Defense Contract Audit Agency (DCAA) office and a copy of the transmittal letter to Defense Contract Audit Agency (DCAA) shall be forwarded to the Contracting Officer for each cost proposal (prime and significant subcontractors) responding to this RFP.

Question 15: L.15 (a) 5 and L.15 (b) 1, under the heading for Mission Suitability Volume in the table containing page limits in paragraph L.15 (b) 1, segment (a) indicates only the ‘SOW’ as excluded from the page limit. In the Draft RFP, this appeared as ‘SOW Compliance Matrix.’ Is the required SOW Compliance Matrix excluded from the page limit in the Mission Suitability Proposal?

Response: Please refer to and follow the requirements and instruction in the final RFP, posted August 7, 2009, not the Draft. There is no SOW compliance matrix required by the SOW reference will be in the final RFP. The SOW reference will be deleted by an amendment to the RFP.
Question 16: L12 (b) 1, the section L reference for Past Performance references is listed as L.18.  Should it be L.19 instead?

Response: Yes you are correct. The proposal volume table will be updated by an amendment to the RFP.  
Question 17: Exhibit 15, WBS 1.4 of the Representative Task Order states in the first line of the SOW that we will “Lead the Mission Readiness Team for the INNOVA mission” and in the second paragraph it states that “The Mission Readiness Test team will be led by a civil servant …”. Can the government clarify if we are leading the Mission Readiness “Test Planning” Team while the actual “Test Team” will be led by the civil servant, or are we not leading the Mission Readiness Team as the first line indicates?
Response:  The overall mission will be lead by a civil servant, an amendment to the RTO, WBS 1.4 will be issued. 

Question 18: Government Surveillance Plan (RFP File 134995-SOL-001-018.doc), No instruction regarding this file or its contents is provided in the RFP. Where in an SES proposal is an Offeror required to respond to the contents in this file?

Response: This document is an exhibit that is for informational purposes. The surveillance plan will be used following award to monitor performance.
Question 19: .IFM files, In releasing the final RFP on NAIS, the government included files with the extension .IFM. These are indicated as Filler files. Is the Offeror required to use these files in responding to the RFP?

Response: Those are the forms selected during the NAIS action indicators however, the forms are posted as Microsoft Word documents; SF30 Amendment of Solicitation and SF33 Solicitation Offer and Award. 
Question 20: In section L.15 Proposal Preparation (b)(1)  Table section on Mission Suitability Volume states that “SOW” is excluded from the page limitations – in the DRFP that reads that “SOW Compliance Matrix” is excluded – suggest that the SOW be corrected to read that the “SOW Compliance Matrix” is excluded from the page count for the Mission Suitability Volume.

Response: Please refer to and follow the requirements and instruction in the final RFP, posted August 7, 2009, not the Draft. There is no SOW compliance matrix required by the SOW reference will be in the final RFP. The SOW reference will be deleted by an amendment to the RFP.
Question 21: How many key personnel resumes are required?

Response: The Government is not requiring resumes or information on key personnel.
Question 22: Can the Government provide current labor rates that are being used for related work?

Response:  The Government will not be providing the current labor rates please refer to the evaluation criteria
in Section M, M.4 MISSION SUITABILITY FACTOR Subfactor C—Management Plan

Question 23: If the prime contractor cannot provide $5 M contracts for past performance, can the prime submit other past performances along with the team's past performances? 

Response:  Yes, Offeror’s are free to submit any data they believe necessary and relevant to establish a  record of past performance.  Please be advised that the size of previous efforts, together with content and complexity, will be used to assess the relevance of all submitted past performance.

Question 24: Can the Government consider extending the deadline because of the large amount of information required and a short turnaround time for submission?

Response: At this time the Government does not intend to extend the Proposal due date.
Question 25: Given the complexity of the requirements and the proposal, including the representative task order, the size of the proposal, the inherent advantage to numerous incumbents, will the government extend the submission deadline by 30 days.

Response: At this time the Government does not intend to extend the Proposal due date.
8/20/2009
Question 1: Reference:  Section L.16 Offer Volume, (c ), (6):  “The Offeror shall describe their methodology for compliance with Attachment D: DD 254” and Reference:  Section L.17, Subfactor C  Management Plan (pg.95): “The Offeror shall describe its methodology for compliance with Attachment D:  Financial Management Reporting Requirements and in accordance with Attachment E:  DD Form 254.” Question:  Please clarify if the Government is requesting Offeror’s to describe compliance with Attachment E:  Financial Management Reporting Requirements or Attachment D:  DD254 or both in the Offer Volume too. 

Response: The government requires Offeror’s to describe its methodology for compliance with Attachment D: Financial Management Reporting Requirements and in accordance with Attachment E: DD Form 254.  Also the methodology for compliance with Attachment D: DD 254. 

Question 2: Reference Exhibit 15: SES Representative Task Order, Ground Software and Systems (WBS 1.3) WBS 1.3 states that the start date for activities is August 1, 2011 while support is necessary in phase C in the detailed design of the ground system. Is it the government’s intent to have the CDR approval for INNOVA exclude the approval of the detailed design of the ground system or should the start date for this activity be at the beginning of Phase C? It appears as written that Phase C has been left out of the period of performance for this activity.

Response: No it is not the government’s intent to have the CDR approval for INNOVA exclude the approval of the detailed design of the ground.  Phase C will be included in the contract period of performance.

